

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24

THE AMERICAN LEGION  
DEPARTMENT OF ILLINOIS  
GEORGE E. HILGARD  
POST #58  
CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS

THE AMERICAN LEGION  
DEPARTMENT OF ILLINOIS

GEORGE E. HILGARD  
POST #58

**CONSTITUTION**

**PREAMBLE**

For God and Country, we associate ourselves together for the following purposes:

To uphold and defend the Constitution of the United States of America; to maintain law and order; to foster and perpetuate a one hundred percent Americanism; to preserve the memories and incidents of our associations in the Great Wars; to inculcate a sense of individual obligation to the community, state and nation; to combat the autocracy of both the classes and the masses; to make right the master of might; to promote peace and good will on earth; to safeguard and transmit to Posterity the principles of justice, freedom and democracy; to consecrate and sanctify our comradeship by our devotion to mutual helpfulness.

**ARTICLE I**

**NAME**

**SECTION 1.** The name of this organization shall be "The George E. Hilgard Post #58, American Legion, Department of Illinois".

**SECTION 2** The mailing address of the Post shall be:

George E. Hilgard Post #58  
American Legion  
Post Office Box 124  
Belleville, IL 62222

The location of the Post is:

George E. Hilgard Post #58  
American Legion  
6355 Hilgard Memorial Drive  
Freeburg, IL 62243

THE AMERICAN LEGION  
DEPARTMENT OF ILLINOIS

GEORGE E. HILGARD  
POST #58

**ARTICLE II**  
**OBJECTS**

**SECTION 1.** The objects and principles of this Post shall be to promote the principles and policies as set forth in the Preamble and the National and Department Constitutions of the American Legion and to promote good fellowship and mutual helpfulness among the honorably discharged personnel as defined by the National Constitution.

**ARTICLE III**  
**NATURE**

**SECTION 1.** This Post is a civilian organization. Membership shall not increase or decrease liability to military or police service. Former service rank does not exist in the American Legion.

**SECTION 2.** This organization shall be completely non-political and non-sectarian, and shall not be used for the dissemination of partisan principles or for the promotion of or the candidacy of any person seeking public office or preferment.

**ARTICLE IV**  
**MEMBERSHIP**

**SECTION 1.** Eligibility for membership in this Post shall be governed by the provisions of the National Constitution of the American Legion and the Department of Illinois of the American Legion Constitution and By-Laws. There shall be no form or class of membership or honorary memberships, except active membership, and dues shall be paid annually, or for life.

**SECTION 2.** Application for membership shall be made in writing under such regulations as may from time-to-time be prescribed by the Post, Department and/or the National Constitutions and By-Laws of the American Legion, accompanied by proper documentation and the necessary membership dues.

The Adjutant shall announce all applications at the regular business meeting.

THE AMERICAN LEGION  
DEPARTMENT OF ILLINOIS

GEORGE E. HILGARD  
POST #58

109  
110  
111  
112  
113  
114  
115  
116  
117  
118  
119  
120  
121  
122  
123  
124  
125  
126  
127  
128  
129  
130  
131  
132  
133  
134  
135  
136  
137  
138  
139  
140  
141  
142  
143  
144  
145  
146  
147  
148  
149  
150

**ARTICLE V**  
**TRANSFERS**

**SECTION 1.** Any member of this Post desiring to transfer to another Post shall fill out a transfer application received from the Adjutant of the Post they are transferring to, a copy of which will be sent to this Post.

**SECTION 2.** Any member desiring to transfer to this Post from another Post shall apply for a transfer application furnished by this Post.

**ARTICLE VI**  
**DISCIPLINE**

**SECTION 1.** Any member of this Post may be suspended or expelled for cause by following the procedure for hearings. The procedure for hearing or appeal shall be as prescribed in Article XI, of the Constitution and By-Laws of the American Legion, Department of Illinois.

**ARTICLE VII**  
**OFFICERS**

**SECTION 1.** The elective officers of this Post shall be as follows:

- Commander;
- Senior Vice-Commander;
- Junior Vice-Commander;
- Finance Officer.

**SECTION 2.** All Post officers shall be elected to a term of three (3) years and shall hold office until their successors are elected and duly installed.

**SECTION 3.** Any member of this Post who is a member in good standing is eligible for election to the offices of Commander, Senior Vice-Commander, Junior Vice-Commander, or Finance Officer.

THE AMERICAN LEGION  
DEPARTMENT OF ILLINOIS

GEORGE E. HILGARD  
POST #58

151 **SECTION 4.** The nomination of all elective officers shall be  
152 held at the first regular meeting in April. Nominations shall  
153 be held open until the night of the election, which shall be  
154 held the first regular meeting in May. A current membership  
155 card must be presented in order to vote. The members receiving  
156 the highest number of votes cast shall be declared elected to  
157 the office to which they were nominated. The officers elected  
158 shall be installed and assume their duties at the first regular  
159 meeting in June. The Adjutant shall certify to the Department  
160 of Illinois all officers prior to the July meeting.

161  
162 **SECTION 5.** Any officer or member may be removed from office for  
163 just cause by the Executive Board, subject to the ratification  
164 of a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the regular membership of this  
165 Post present and voting. A recommendation for removal from  
166 office must be voted on separately from any other item.

167  
168 **SECTION 6.** In cases of death, resignation or removal of any  
169 elected officer, the Commander or acting Commander should fill  
170 the vacancy by appointment and that individual shall complete  
171 the remaining term.

172  
173 **ARTICLE VIII**  
174 **AUXILIARIES**

175  
176 **SECTION 1.** The George E. Hilgard Post #58, American Legion,  
177 recognizes the following Post Auxiliaries:

178  
179 American Legion Auxiliary Unit #58;  
180 American Legion Auxiliary Unit #58 Juniors;  
181 The Sons of the American Legion Squadron #58; and  
182 American Legion Riders Chapter #58.

183  
184 **SECTION 2.** No new auxiliaries shall be organized or formed  
185 until they shall have submitted their plans for approval to the  
186 Executive Board of George E. Hilgard Post #58.

187  
188 **SECTION 3.** The Commander shall have the right to visit all  
189 recognized auxiliaries. The Post insists that all auxiliaries  
190 operate on a cash basis and submit an annual activity report and  
191 a financial statement prior to the August meeting of the  
192 Executive Board.

193

THE AMERICAN LEGION  
DEPARTMENT OF ILLINOIS

GEORGE E. HILGARD  
POST #58

**ARTICLE IX**  
**AMENDMENTS**

194  
195  
196  
197  
198  
199  
200  
201  
202  
203  
204  
205  
206  
207  
208  
209  
210  
211  
212  
213  
214

**SECTION 1.** This Constitution is adopted subject to the provisions of the National Constitution of the American Legion and the Constitution of the Department of Illinois. Any part of this constitution in conflict with any provisions of the National or Department constitutions shall be regarded as automatically repealed or modified to the extent of such conflict.

**SECTION 2.** This Constitution may be amended at any regular meeting by vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the Post present and voting, providing that the amendment(s) shall have been submitted in writing and read at the last previous regular meeting, and providing further, that written notice shall have been given all members at least twenty (20) days in advance of the date when the amendment(s) is/are to be voted on. Written notice may be by electronic mail or posted on the Post website.

**[END OF PAGE]**

THE AMERICAN LEGION  
DEPARTMENT OF ILLINOIS

GEORGE E. HILGARD  
POST #58

**BY-LAWS**

**ARTICLE I  
MEETINGS**

215  
216  
217  
218  
219  
220 **SECTION 1.** The regular meeting of this Post shall be held on  
221 the second Wednesday of each month. The meeting shall be held  
222 at the time and place as designated by the membership as its  
223 regular meeting place and at which time such business may be  
224 transacted as is properly brought up for action.  
225

226 The Executive Board meetings of this Post shall be held on  
227 the second Wednesday of each month prior to the general  
228 membership meeting. The meeting shall be held at the time and  
229 place as designated by the Executive Board as its regular  
230 meeting place and at which time such business may be transacted  
231 as is properly brought up for action.  
232

233 **SECTION 2.** Special meetings may be called by the Commander or  
234 two (2) other elected officers of the Post or shall be called at  
235 the written request of fifteen (15) members of this Post in good  
236 standing. The Adjutant, when so notified, shall give notice of  
237 such meeting by mail, electronic mail or posted on the Post  
238 website, to all members of the Post at least three (3) days  
239 prior to the date of such meeting. The notice shall state the  
240 purpose of the special meeting and no business other than that  
241 for which it was called shall be transacted at the meeting.  
242

243 **SECTION 3.** Three (3) members of the Post in good standing, of  
244 which two (2) must be Executive Board members, shall constitute  
245 a quorum for the transaction of all business at all annual,  
246 regular or special meetings, but a lesser number may adjourn any  
247 meeting from day-to-day.  
248

249 **SECTION 4.** The parliamentary procedures of all Post business  
250 meetings or special meetings shall be governed by Roberts Rules  
251 of Order, as revised, and as herein modified.  
252

THE AMERICAN LEGION  
DEPARTMENT OF ILLINOIS

GEORGE E. HILGARD  
POST #58

253 **SECTION 5.** The order of business at all regular meetings shall  
254 be as follows:

- 255
- 256 1. Opening ceremonies as prescribed by National.
  - 257 2. Reading of minutes of previous month's meeting of Post  
258 and Executive Board.
  - 259 3. Acknowledgment of guests.
  - 260 4. Application and approval of new membership.
  - 261 5. Reports of officers and committees.
  - 262 6. Initiation of candidates (if so desired).
  - 263 7. Sick call and relief.
  - 264 8. Unfinished business.
  - 265 9. New business (bills and correspondence).
  - 266 10. Good of the legion.
  - 267 11. Closing ceremonies.
- 268

269 **ARTICLE II**  
270 **DUES & FINANCE**

271

272 **SECTION 1.** The revenue of this Post shall be derived from  
273 initiation fees, as provided from annual dues from the  
274 membership and from such other sources as may be approved by the  
275 Post membership.

276

277 **SECTION 2.** Each member shall pay as dues to this Post the  
278 amount prescribed by the National Constitution and By-Laws and  
279 membership. Annual dues shall be payable by December 31 of each  
280 year, for the succeeding calendar year.

281

282 **ARTICLE III**  
283 **MANAGEMENT**

284

285 **SECTION 1.** The Government and management of this Post, between  
286 meeting dates shall be entrusted to the Executive Board, which  
287 shall consist of:

- 288
- 289 Commander;
  - 290 Senior Vice-Commander;
  - 291 Junior Vice-Commander; and
  - 292 Finance Officer.
- 293
- 294



THE AMERICAN LEGION  
DEPARTMENT OF ILLINOIS

GEORGE E. HILGARD  
POST #58

295           The Executive Board shall meet at the call of the Commander  
296 and at least once before the regular Post meeting. The Finance  
297 Officer shall designate a depository for the Post funds. They  
298 shall act upon matters referred to the Board by a vote at any  
299 Post meeting.

300

301 **SECTION 2.** The government and management of all legion  
302 properties of Post #58 shall be in the hands of the Executive  
303 Board. The Commander elect shall call the organizational  
304 meeting of the Executive Board before July 1.

305

306           The Executive Board shall have the power to set opening and  
307 closing times of all legion properties and functions. They  
308 shall have the power to execute lease for the properties. The  
309 Commander shall be a non-voting member except in the case of a  
310 tie vote.

311

312 **SECTION 3.** No contract binding upon this Post, except as  
313 otherwise provided for in these By-Laws, in any amount for any  
314 purpose, may be made by any officer, committee, or member  
315 without first securing authorization from the Executive Board.  
316 Upon approval, all contracts must be signed by the Post  
317 Commander and the Finance Officer.

318

319           No member of this Post may purchase any item for the Post  
320 using personal funds or act as an agent expecting reimbursement,  
321 without prior specific authorization from the Executive Board.

322

323           Members may bid and compete on contracts, be paid wages,  
324 salaries, fees, or remuneration for services as determined by  
325 the Executive Board under these By-Laws, but are restricted as  
326 follows: A member under contract to the Post, or who has filed  
327 an application for employment, or is currently employed by the  
328 Post, must recuse himself during the General Membership or Post  
329 Executive Committee meetings from making motions related to his  
330 employment, position creation or retention, or budget approvals  
331 which include his contract or salary amounts, and must abstain  
332 from voting on all such matters. He may, however, respond during  
333 the meeting to questions regarding those subjects.

334

335           If a member, due to the nature of his duties and  
336 responsibilities according to the Constitution or By-Laws, holds  
337 an office or position in the American Legion that has actual

THE AMERICAN LEGION  
DEPARTMENT OF ILLINOIS

GEORGE E. HILGARD  
POST #58

338 management control or oversight or supervisory authority over  
339 any contract/subcontract let by this Post, or over any employee  
340 of this Post, he shall not be permitted to be a paid employee of  
341 this Post at any level or position within that specific  
342 management chain of supervision.

343

344 **Section 4.** In contracting for services, products or labor, the  
345 Executive Board will establish procedures which will ensure the  
346 following in all contractual considerations:

347

348 (1) Each contract proposal, product purchase, or  
349 request for services action, involving an aggregate amount  
350 reasonably expected to exceed \$5000.00, shall have  
351 specifications written in detail, submitted to the Finance  
352 Committee, and forwarded to the Executive Board for  
353 approval.

354

355 (2) Advertisements for bids on any such consideration  
356 in (1) above must conform to effective business processes,  
357 listing all the factors which will determine the final  
358 selection of a specific bidder.

359

360 (3) Final selection of a bidder, product, or service  
361 provider shall be performed in a non-discriminatory manner,  
362 and be in the best interests of the Post.

363

364 All contracts for services, labor or any category of work  
365 to be performed for the Post shall be understood to include, and  
366 if written, state the following: "This Post reserves and retains  
367 the option to select a qualified volunteer(s) to perform,  
368 without financial compensation, any tasks which may be  
369 interpreted as requirements of his contract. Such option, if  
370 exercised, can modify or reduce the contract statement of work  
371 or scope of work clauses along with respective compensation  
372 amounts." Therefore, any contract expected to be affected in  
373 this way will be reviewed by the Finance Committee and the  
374 contractor shall be notified prior to the Post exercising this  
375 option.

376

377 Any single expenditure that will exceed \$5000.00 requires  
378 use of the contract procedures listed above unless waived by the  
379 Executive Board or the Post membership.

380

THE AMERICAN LEGION  
DEPARTMENT OF ILLINOIS

GEORGE E. HILGARD  
POST #58

381

382 **SECTION 5.** The Executive Board shall appoint a Farm Chairman  
383 and a Home Chairman who, in turn, will select members as deemed  
384 necessary to carry on the operation of their respective areas.

385

386 The Farm and Home Chairmen shall recommend to the Executive  
387 Board such additional personnel as may be needed for the  
388 operation and maintenance of their assigned areas and recommend  
389 the rate of pay for such help, if applicable.

390

391 The Farm and Home Chairmen shall have the power and duties  
392 to furnish, maintain and rent the areas of the Post to any  
393 individual deemed worthy.

394

395 Rental fees for the use of said areas shall be at the  
396 discretion of the Farm or Home Chairmen, respectively, with the  
397 approval of the Executive Board.

398

399 The Farm/Home Chairmen shall have the power to receive and  
400 collect income from rents, fees and sales and shall deposit the  
401 same in the name of the George E. Hilgard Post #58, American  
402 Legion bank account. The Farm/Home Chairmen shall keep separate  
403 records of all money received and disbursed and render to the  
404 Post Finance Officer and the Executive Board a monthly report.

405

406 All actions of the Farm/Home Chairmen are subject to  
407 approval of the Executive Board with the exception of  
408 operational expenses not to exceed \$2000.00 per each action  
409 without approval of the Executive Board.

410

411 **SECTION 6.** The Executive Board shall compile an annual report  
412 of the Farm and Home Chairman and present it at the first  
413 regular meeting in August.

414

415 **SECTION 7.** Should it become necessary for the Farm or Home  
416 Chairmen to dismiss any help they have hired or contracted, or  
417 should any dispute arise between the public, and the Farm or  
418 Home Chairmen, it should be referred to the Executive Board and  
419 the action of the Executive Board will be final.

420

421 **SECTION 8.** The Executive Board shall, at all times, require  
422 that adequate insurance and licensing as needed for the

THE AMERICAN LEGION  
DEPARTMENT OF ILLINOIS

GEORGE E. HILGARD  
POST #58

423 protection and the operation of the Farm and the Home be  
424 provided.

425  
426 **SECTION 9.** The Executive Board shall be the custodian of all  
427 legal papers pertaining to the Legion properties and they shall  
428 deposit them in a safe deposit box in the name of the George E.  
429 Hilgard Post #58 or a fire proof safe located at American Legion  
430 Post 58. An inventory shall be completed each year noting  
431 additions or deletions and submitted to the Adjutant.

432  
433 **ARTICLE IV**  
434 **DUTIES OF OFFICERS**  
435

436 **SECTION 1.** The Commander shall preside at the regular monthly  
437 meeting of the Post. He shall have jurisdiction of Post affairs  
438 between meetings. He shall approve all orders directing the  
439 disbursement of Post funds authorized by the Post. He shall  
440 call the organizational meeting of the Executive Board  
441 immediately after election. He shall appoint the following  
442 officers:

443  
444           Adjutant  
445           Chaplain  
446           Historian  
447           Judge Advocate  
448           Service Officer  
449           Sergeant-at-Arms

450  
451           The Post Commander shall appoint all committee Chairmen as  
452 needed and the Chairman of any committee shall make a report  
453 when called upon by the Commander or the Executive Board.

454  
455           If the Commander is instructed to appoint a committee by a  
456 voice vote at a regular or special meeting, the appointment of  
457 members to such a committee by the Commander need not be made  
458 with the advice and consent of the Executive Board.

459  
460           The Commander shall have the right to visit all auxiliary  
461 meetings and take part in all meetings.

462  
463           He shall make an annual report covering the business of the  
464 Post for the year and shall make such recommendations as may be  
465 needed for the ensuing year. The Commander's report shall be

THE AMERICAN LEGION  
DEPARTMENT OF ILLINOIS

GEORGE E. HILGARD  
POST #58

466 read at the August meeting and a copy thereof shall be filed  
467 with the Post Adjutant.

468

469 **SECTION 2.** A Commander, who shall have served as such until the  
470 expiration of his term of office and until a successor is  
471 installed, shall be designated as a Past Commander.

472

473 **SECTION 3.** The Senior Vice-Commander shall assist the Commander  
474 and in the absence of the Commander or inability of the  
475 Commander to perform the duties of office, he shall assume the  
476 duties of the Commander.

477

478 He shall be Chairman of the membership committee and shall  
479 appoint such additional help as may be needed to properly enroll  
480 the membership and shall submit a monthly report in triplicate,  
481 one for the Finance Officer, one for the Adjutant and one for  
482 the records of office.

483

484 **SECTION 4.** The Junior Vice-Commander, in the absence of the  
485 Senior Vice-Commander or the Commander, shall assume the duties  
486 of the officers as outlined above.

487

488 He shall be in charge of any special event or function  
489 assigned by the Commander.

490

491 **SECTION 5.** The Finance Officer shall receive, hold and expend  
492 under the direction of the Post, all monies of the Post.

493

494 He shall expend all monies of the Post electronically or by  
495 check. All transactions, except operational expenses, shall be  
496 approved by the Commander or other officially designated signer.  
497 He shall deposit all monies in a designated depository in the  
498 name of the "George E. Hilgard Post #58, American Legion."

499

500 He shall submit a written report at the regular monthly  
501 meeting of the Post and an annual report for all monies turned  
502 over by persons entrusted with the same.

503

504 He shall be a member of the budget and auditing committee.

505

506 **SECTION 6.** The Sergeant-at-Arms preserves order at all meetings  
507 and performs such other duties as may be assigned by the  
508 Commander. He shall be the custodian of all Post memorabilia,

THE AMERICAN LEGION  
DEPARTMENT OF ILLINOIS

GEORGE E. HILGARD  
POST #58

509 to include photos, statues, memorials, uniforms, etc. and will  
510 turn such memorabilia over to his successor, taking receipt of  
511 the same. An inventory shall be completed each year no later  
512 than July 31, noting additions or deletions, and submitted to  
513 the Post Adjutant.

514

515 **SECTION 7.** The Adjutant shall have charge of and keep full and  
516 accurate records of all proceedings of all meetings and keep  
517 such records as the Department and National organizations may  
518 require and shall, under the direction of the Commander, handle  
519 all correspondence of the Post.

520

521 **SECTION 8.** The Post Chaplain shall be charged with the  
522 spiritual welfare of the Post comrades and will offer divine,  
523 but non-sectarian service in the event of dedication, funerals,  
524 public functions, etc., adhering to such ceremonial rituals as  
525 are recommended by the Department or National Headquarters from  
526 time-to-time.

527

528 He shall be the Chairman of the Sick and Visitation  
529 Committee.

530

531 **SECTION 9.** The Service Officer shall assist all veterans and/or  
532 dependants in adjusting any claims which they might have against  
533 the United States or State government by reason of their service  
534 in the Armed Forces of the United States, employment relief,  
535 etc., and community welfare matters and shall render a report at  
536 each regular meeting.

537

538 **SECTION 10.** The Judge Advocate shall investigate all criminal  
539 charges against members of the Post when called to the attention  
540 of the office and take such steps as may be deemed advisable for  
541 the defense of meritorious cases.

542

543 He shall be the legal advisor of the Post and to this  
544 office will be referred all matters calling for legal opinion.

545

546 He shall give to the Commander or Executive Board a written  
547 opinion of any questions pertaining to the Post or any affairs  
548 which may be submitted.

549

550 He shall submit a semi-annual report to the Post and  
551 include in it such other matters as may be deemed advisable.

THE AMERICAN LEGION  
DEPARTMENT OF ILLINOIS

GEORGE E. HILGARD  
POST #58

552  
553 **SECTION 11.** The Post Historian shall keep a record of the  
554 history of the Post and shall make a report at the first meeting  
555 in August.

556  
557 He shall also be in charge of the graves registration and  
558 shall look after the location of graves in local cemeteries and  
559 cooperate with the grave registration committee of the  
560 Department in all matters pertaining to the registration of  
561 graves.

562  
563 **ARTICLE V**  
564 **SPONSORED ORGANIZATIONS**

565  
566 **SECTION 1.** The George E. Hilgard Post #58, American Legion  
567 recognizes the following sponsored groups:

568  
569 The lease holders' organization known as: Veterans  
570 Retirement and Recreational Association, aka V.R.R.A.;

571  
572 The organization known as: Freedom Farm Recreational  
573 Area NFP of George E. Hilgard Post 58 (FFRA); and

574  
575 The baseball teams known as: Hilgard Senior American  
576 Legion Team and Hilgard Junior American Legion Team.

577  
578 **Article VI**  
579 **DELEGATES**

580  
581 **SECTION 1.** Delegates and alternates to the annual District,  
582 Division and Department conventions shall be elected to a term  
583 of three (3) years and shall hold office until their successors  
584 are elected and duly installed.

585  
586 **SECTION 2.** The nomination of all elective officers shall be  
587 held at the first regular meeting in April. Nominations shall  
588 be held open until the night of the election, which shall be  
589 held the first regular meeting in May. A current membership  
590 card must be presented in order to vote. The members receiving  
591 the highest number of votes cast shall be declared elected to  
592 the office to which they were nominated. The officers elected  
593 shall be installed and assume their duties at the first regular

THE AMERICAN LEGION  
DEPARTMENT OF ILLINOIS

GEORGE E. HILGARD  
POST #58

594 meeting in June. The Adjutant shall certify to the Department  
595 of Illinois all officers prior to the July meeting.

596

597

**ARTICLE VII**

598

**LIMITATIONS & LIABILITIES**

599

600 **SECTION 1.** The Post shall not incur or cause to be incurred any  
601 liability or obligation whatsoever, which shall subject to  
602 liability any other Post, sub-division, group, member of the  
603 American Legion, or other individual, corporation or  
604 organization.

605

606

**ARTICLE VIII**

607

**GENDER NEUTRALITY**

608

609 **Section 1.** All words in the Constitution and By-Laws in the  
610 masculine gender shall include the feminine gender.

611

**ARTICLE IX**

612

**AMENDMENTS TO BY-LAWS**

613

614 **SECTION 1.** These By-Laws may be amended at the regular meeting  
615 by a vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the members present and voting  
616 provided that the proposed amendment shall have been submitted  
617 in writing and read at the next previous regular meeting of the  
618 Post.

619

620 This constitution and accompanying By-Laws were adopted at  
621 the regular meeting of the George E. Hilgard Post #58, American  
622 Legion, Department of Illinois, Belleville, Illinois held on 11  
623 December 2019.

624

625

626

627

628

629 /s/Tammy J. Hickey

/s/Heather Swope

630 (SIGNED) Adjutant

(SIGNED) Commander

631

632